CITY OF RICHARDSON
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES - OCTOBER 9, 2025

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on October 9, 2025, at 6:30 p.m. in the Multipurpose
Room #CH157 of the Richardson City Hall, 2360 Campbell Creek Boulevard, Suite 525,
Richardson, TX.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Bryan Marsh, Chairman
Jeremy Thomason, Vice Chairman
Gary Beach, Commissioner
Nate Roberts, Commissioner
Joe Quirk, Commissioner
Kristen Schascheck, Commissioner
Byron Purdy, Commissioner (Alternate)

MEMBERS ABSENT: Michael Keller, Commissioner
Rebecca Poynter, Commissioner (Alternate)

CITY STAFF PRESENT: Tina Firgens, Director of Development Services
Andrew Bogda, Assistant Director of DS — Planning
Derica Peters, Senior Planner
Anna Jo Castaneda, Executive Secretary

BRIEFING SESSION

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with Staff at 6:30
p.m. for a work session including an introduction to the Community Revitalization Awards, review
and discussion of agenda items, and an update regarding recent Council actions on zoning and
development cases. No action was taken.

CALL TO ORDER
Chairman Marsh called the regular business meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING

1. Approval of minutes of the regular business meeting of August 19, 2025.

Motion: Commissioner Roberts made a motion to approve the minutes as presented.
Vice Chairman Thomason seconded the motion. Motion passed 7-0.

PUBLIC HEARING

2. Zoning File 25-16 — Special Permit — What a Great Dog Training: Consider and act on a
request for a Special Permit for a Dog Training Center within a 5,256 square-foot existing
building on a 0.431-acre lot located at 304 S. Cottonwood Drive, and currently zoned O-M
Office. Owner: Jim Otis, Knight Family Investments. Staff: Derica Peters

Derica Peters, Senior Planner, stated this is a request for a Special Permit for a dog training center,
an unlisted use in the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance. The applicant, What A Great Dog,



2

provides one-on-one and group dog training. The applicant will operate entirely within the
building, which will be renovated in the interior. The landscape areas in front of the building have
been replaced with artificial turf, which helps with maintaining cleanliness

Ms. Peters advised that the dog training center plans to relocate from its current Frisco location to
a new 5,200-square-foot facility in Richardson. The site includes one driveway providing access
to Cottonwood Drive to the east, and a public alley at the rear that provides access to parking
spaces on the west side. There are 32 parking spaces on-site, but the applicant anticipates needing
only 15 parking spaces. The requested parking ratio is one space per 350 square feet. At least one
(1) pet waste station will be provided on the property, and the proposed hours of operation are
Monday through Thursday, 7:30 a.m. to 8:30 p.m., and Friday through Sunday, 9:00 a.m. to 5:00
p.m.

Ms. Peters stated that the Envision Richardson Comprehensive Plan designates this area as part of
the Community Commercial PlaceType. This designation is characterized by large-scale
developments that attract regional traffic and shopping, and primary uses include retail and office.

Ms. Peters advised that one letter was received from the neighboring Ethiopian Amernican
Community Association to the north, which included five specific questions that she read and
answered as follows:

e How many dogs are expected to be trained per day? To be answered by the applicant.

e Will training be conducted outdoors, and if so, during what hours? All training will be
indoors, and the hours of operation are conditions of approval.

e How long do dogs usually stay at the facility? To be answered by the applicant.

e What noise control or soundproofing measures will be in place? The building is
freestanding with no shared walls, so noise impacts are expected to be minimal. It will also
be subject to the City’s nuisance ordinance.

e How will parking and traffic be managed to avoid overflow on Cottonwood Drive? The
presentation previously included an overview of available on-site parking.

Chairman Marsh asked if there were any questions for Staff, and seeing none, the public hearing
was opened, and the applicant was asked to come forward.

Maureen Patin, 8379 Santa Clara Drive, Dallas, TX 75218, stated that she is the founder and trainer
for What A Great Dog. She stated that they have been in the Dallas area for 18 years, with eight
(8) of those years being in Richardson. They are currently in Frisco, but the lease is up, and they
want to come back to Richardson and own their own building.

Ms. Patin described the training methods they offer. She said their business will have a low impact
to the area because they are an indoor training center. There is no training outside. The pet waste
station in front of the building will be monitored by staff to make sure the area is kept clean, the
receptacles emptied, and waste bags replenished. All dogs are required to be up to date on their
vaccinations and kept on a leash. At most, their classes may be attended by up to ten (10) client
families at a time, resulting in a maximum parking need of 10 spaces for clients. Additionally,
there will be a maximum of four (4) staff members at a given time.



3

Ms. Patin elaborated by stating that during their eight (8) years of conducting business in
Richardson, they established strong relationships with the community and most of the veterinarians
in Richardson recommend What A Great Dog. They have partnered with the Richardson Animal
Shelter through donations and offered training to shelter dogs.

Commissioner Roberts asked if they have concerns about geese being on their property since they
are directly across from the park.

Ms. Patin said the geese will likely learn to avoid their site once dogs start coming to the site.
Commissioner Purdy asked how the applicant determines whether a dog has a history of biting.

Ms. Patin explained that during intake, owners are asked a series of questions about their dog’s
history. If a dog presents a risk, then private in-home lessons are offered instead.

Commissioner Purdy asked whether any specific dog breeds are prohibited.

Ms. Patin stated that there are no breed bans.

Chairman Marsh referenced the written letter received by the neighboring property owner, and
asked the applicant to confirm the answer to the questions were as follows: there would be a
maximum of 12 dogs at a time, there is no outdoor training, weekdays have the most activity, and
there would be no boarding. He also asked her to address noise control and soundproofing
measures.

Ms. Patin confirmed his responses were correct, and explained the building is freestanding with
no shared walls. The dogs are kept busy all day with training, so while there may be still some
level of barking, it is very minimal.

Chairman Marsh asked what time was their busiest for traffic and parking.

Ms. Patin stated that the busiest times are during morning drop-offs, afternoon pick-ups, and class
changeovers in the evenings.

Chairman Marsh asked why the applicant selected a smaller building than the previous locations.

Ms. Patin explained that there used to be more demand for group classes and agility training, which
required more space, but that demand has shifted toward training without owners present and one-
on-one training sessions, which do not require as much space.

Chairman Marsh asked if the applicant would be purchasing the building.

Ms. Patin confirmed they would.

Vice Chairman Thomason asked if a purchase contract was pending and, if so, the expected closing
date.

Ms. Patin responded that it is scheduled for October 23, 2025.



With no further questions, Chairman Marsh asked for any public comments in favor or opposition.
Seeing none, he moved to close the public hearing. Commissioner Beach seconded the motion.
Motion passed 7-0.

Chairman Marsh explained that this applicant meets a need in the community and has a strong
track record in Richardson. While there may be minor traffic increases during class changes,
parking is adequate, and indoor operations should minimize noise impacts.

Commissioner Schascheck commented that she was in support, stating it was encouraging to see
a well-established business returning to Richardson with strong community partnerships.

Vice Chairman Thomason added that it was commendable the applicant is investing in property
ownership and stated his full support for the request.

Motion: Commissioner Schascheck made a motion to recommend approval of the

request as presented. Vice Chairman Thomason seconded the motion. Motion
passed 7-0.

ADJOURN

With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Marsh adjourned the regular business
meeting at 7:33 p.m.

Ao

Bryan Marsh, Chairman




